Public Document Pack

TONBRIDGE & MALLING
BOROUGH COUNCIL
EXECUTIVE SERVICES
Gibson Building
Gibson Drive
Kings Hill, West Malling
Kent ME19 4LZ
West Malling (01732) 844522

Chief Executive
Julie Beilby BSc (Hons) MBA

NB - This agenda contains proposals,
recommendations and options. These do
not represent Council policy or decisions
until they have received proper
consideration through the full decision
making process.

To:

Contact: Committee Services
committee.services@tmbc.gov.uk
5 November 2019

MEMBERS OF THE PLANNING AND TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY
BOARD
(Copies to all Members of the Council)

Dear Sir/Madam
Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the Planning and Transportation Advisory
Board to be held in the Civic Suite, Gibson Building, Kings Hill, West Malling on
Wednesday, 13th November, 2019 commencing at 7.30 pm
Yours faithfully
JULIE BEILBY
Chief Executive

AGENDA
PART 1 - PUBLIC
1.

Apologies for absence

5-6

2.

Declarations of interest

7-8

3.

Minutes

9 - 10

To confirm as a correct record the Notes of the meeting of the Planning and
Transportation Advisory Board held on 2 October 2019
Matters for Recommendation to the Cabinet
4.

Review of Planning Application Charging Regime

11 - 18

The report provides a review of the pre-application charging regime and sets out
the proposed new charges for 2020-2021. The protocol is reviewed every year to
ensure the evidence base is up to date. In ensuring that the charging schedule is
fairly applied and costs recovery continues to take place proportionately, an
increase in fees is proposed.
5.

Planning Performance Agreement Protocol

19 - 50

The report seeks approval for the adoption of a Planning Performance Agreement
Protocol, which is intended to provide a clear and transparent framework in
respect of how the Service will encourage the use of PPAs in all appropriate
circumstances and how such agreements will be administered and facilitated. The
use of PPAs will incur fees for the management of the tasks agreed within them
and as such the report proposes a fee schedule.
6.

Self Build Register Update

51 - 56

The report updates Members in respect of the Council’s Self-Build and Custom
Housebuilding Register and specifically the introduction of eligibility criteria
including a local connections test and a financial solvency test. It also seeks
agreement for the introduction of an administration fee.
Matters submitted for Information
7.

Planning Enforcement Update

57 - 62

The report seeks to update Members on matters pertaining to planning
enforcement.
8.

Local Plan Update

63 - 68

The report provides an update on the Local Plan including the public consultation
exercise requested by the appointed Planning Inspectors. There are no direct
financial implications arising from this information report.
9.

Urgent Items

69 - 70

Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent due to special
circumstances and of which notice has been given to the Chief Executive

Matters for consideration in Private
10.

Exclusion of Press and Public

71 - 72

The Chairman to move that the press and public be excluded from the remainder
of the meeting during consideration of any items the publication of which would
disclose exempt information.
PART 2 - PRIVATE
11.

Urgent Items

73 - 74

Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent due to special
circumstances and of which notice has been given to the Chief Executive.

MEMBERSHIP
Cllr R W Dalton (Chairman)
Cllr J L Botten (Vice-Chairman)
Cllr T Bishop
Cllr M D Boughton
Cllr V M C Branson
Cllr D J Cooper
Cllr D A S Davis
Cllr M O Davis
Cllr S A Hudson

Cllr D Keers
Cllr D W King
Cllr Mrs C B Langridge
Cllr H S Rogers
Cllr N G Stapleton
Cllr M Taylor
Cllr D Thornewell

Agenda Item 1
Apologies for absence

Page 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 2
Declarations of interest

Page 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3
TONBRIDGE AND MALLING BOROUGH COUNCIL
PLANNING AND TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY BOARD
Wednesday, 2nd October, 2019
Present:

Cllr R W Dalton (Chairman), Cllr J L Botten (Vice-Chairman),
Cllr T Bishop,
Cllr
M D Boughton,
Cllr
V M C Branson,
Cllr D J Cooper, Cllr D A S Davis, Cllr M O Davis, Cllr S A Hudson,
Cllr D W King, Cllr H S Rogers, Cllr N G Stapleton and Cllr M Taylor
Councillors Mrs J A Anderson, G C Bridge, A E Clark, N J Heslop,
M A J Hood, F A Hoskins, K King, J R S Lark, D Lettington, B J Luker,
Mrs A S Oakley, W E Palmer, M R Rhodes and J L Sergison were
also present pursuant to Council Procedure Rule No 15.21.
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors D Keers and
D Thornewell

PE 19/18

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest made in accordance with the
Code of Conduct.

PE 19/19

MINUTES
RESOLVED: That the notes of the meeting of the Planning and
Transportation Advisory Board held on 4 June 2019 be approved as a
correct record and signed by the Chairman.
MATTERS FOR RECOMMENDATION TO THE CABINET

PE 19/20

TUNBRIDGE WELLS LOCAL PLAN REGULATION 18
CONSULTATION
The report of the Director of Planning, Housing and Environmental
Health summarised the main cross boundary issues arising from the
proposals in the Tunbridge Wells draft Local Plan and suggested the key
matters for inclusion in the response to the Regulation 18 consultation
which would close on 1 November 2019.
Considerable discussion ensued in which Members raised substantial
concerns about the impact of the proposed development at Capel,
Tudeley, Paddock Wood and land adjacent to Longfield Road on
Tonbridge and its environs in terms of trip generation, traffic congestion,
pressure on Tonbridge station and parking and other facilities. The need
for appropriate infrastructure to be in place prior to development was
emphasised together with proper regard to flood risk plans, location and
site constraints of the proposed secondary school, additional health care
facilities and the Green Belt. Members expressed significant concern

1

Page 9

PLANNING AND TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY
BOARD

2 October 2019

about the soundness of the Plan as currently proposed, particularly in
relation to the tests of soundness required in paragraph 35 of the
National Planning Policy Framework regarding agreements with other
authorities. Officers clarified that these tests were considerations for the
Inspector when the Plan was examined and not for consulted authorities
to decide. It was requested that a strengthened response be prepared
for consideration by the Cabinet.
RECOMMENDED: That
(1)

the contents of the report be noted; and

(2)

a full and robust response to the Tunbridge Wells Local Plan
Regulation 18 consultation be prepared based on the strong
concerns and specific additional items to those set out in sections
1.4 and 1.5 of the report, as expressed by Members at the
meeting, including a query regarding how the test of soundness at
NPPF paragraph 35 would be met and the draft response be
presented to the Cabinet for decision.
*Referred to Cabinet

MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION IN PRIVATE
PE 19/21

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
There were no matters considered in private.

The meeting ended at 10.00 pm

2

Page 10

Agenda Item 4
TONBRIDGE & MALLING BOROUGH COUNCIL
PLANNING and TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY BOARD
13 November 2019
Report of the Director of Planning, Housing & Environmental Health
Part 1- Public
Matters for Recommendation to Cabinet - Key Decision
1

REVIEW OF THE PLANNING APPLICATION CHARGING REGIME
Summary: This report provides a review of the pre-application charging
regime and sets out the proposed new charges for 2020-2021. It is
necessary to review the protocol every year in order to ensure the evidence
base is up to date. The charging schedule is also considered annually and
this year in ensuring that the charging schedule is fairly applied and costs
recovery continues to take place proportionately, an increase in fees is
proposed.

1.1

Introduction

1.1.1

The current Pre-Application Advice Protocol and Charging regime was introduced
on 1 April 2016 and has since been updated annually following ongoing periods of
monitoring and review.

1.1.2

As part of this, Officers continue to record the feedback received in connection
with this service along with the time spent providing the advice sought.

1.2

The current pre-application process

1.2.1

The Pre-application Protocol and fee structure, introduced on 1 April 2016 and
subsequently updated annually continues to identify five main categories:
1) Householders:- includes proposals relating to individual houses and flats for
residential purposes where the building affected is not a listed building.
2) Minor development:- includes alterations to an existing building (not
householder) where there is no increase in floor space, increase in floor space
less than 499 sq.m., new or replacement shop fronts, new or replacement
advertisements, alterations to a listed building, demolition of an unlisted
building within a conservation area, proposals for Telecommunications
Equipment, proposals for Air Conditioning / Ventilation Equipment,
amendments to Previously Approved Schemes, discharge of conditions
attached to permissions and 1 new residential unit.

P&TAB-KD-Part 1 Public

Page 11

13 November 2019

2

3) Medium development:- includes advice on 2 to 9 new residential units or the
creation/change of use of up to 999 sq.m. floor space.
4) Major development:- includes advice on 10 to 99 new residential units or the
creation/change of use of 1,000 to 9,999 sq.m.
5) Large/Strategic development:- includes advice on 100 or more new residential
units or the creation/change of use of 10,000 sq.m. or more floor space.
1.2.2

The charges for advice continue to relate to the submission of one query only.
Submissions that include multiple options, amended drawings submitted following
a meeting/site visit and any additional matters not included with the original
submission are viewed as new enquiries and are subject to a separate fee.

1.2.3

The Protocol identifies two categories where fees will not apply:

1.2.4



Advice to third parties affected by the development and/or change of use



Disabled access improvements.

The Protocol offers a three option system as follows:


A pre-application written response



A pre-application meeting at the Council offices, followed by a letter



A pre-application meeting on site, followed by a letter.

1.2.5

This system allows the prospective applicant to choose what level best suits their
needs and budget. All three options have been used by prospective applicants
during the monitoring period.

1.3

Proposed amendments

1.3.1

The Pre-Application Protocol continues to prove effective in delivering technical
planning advice in a timely way since it was introduced, having established a clear
framework to all parties in how the Council will provide such advice.

1.3.2

Ongoing review has indicated that in some instances applicants and developers
have been frustrated that planning permissions have not been forthcoming
subsequent to pre-application advice having been sought and paid for. In this
respect, it is important to recognise that all pre-application advice is given on a
“without prejudice” basis. As such, advice offered by the Planning Officers is in no
way binding on the Council’s eventual decision, which must be borne out of a
careful and thorough assessment against relevant policies and other material
considerations, and within the context of representations made by statutory and
other consultees which can only happen once a formal planning application is
made.

P&TAB-KD-Part 1 Public

Page 12

13 November 2019

3

1.3.3

Nevertheless, when such circumstances do arise it is recognised that a small
number of applicants and developers may consequently question the value of
engaging with the Council early on which may undermine the process. With this
in mind, it is recommended that the Protocol be made clearer in this respect along
with a standard paragraph to be inserted into all written advice explaining this
more clearly for the avoidance of any doubt.

1.3.4

Furthermore, going forward it will be particularly important to ensure that the
advice given suitably joins up with the Planning Performance Protocol which is to
be developed (reported in full elsewhere on this agenda). The Pre-Application
Protocol will therefore need to provide clear links to this document going forward
and this will be facilitated through the development of the relevant pages on the
Council website and through careful cross referencing.

1.3.5

It is also necessary to ensure that the fees charged for providing such advice
enable the Council to continue to recover the full costs incurred. Trends have
proved to be similar to those monitored last year and as such it is proposed that
the fees should be increased in line with inflation and that the Pre-Application
Charging Schedule be amended to reflect this [Annex 1]. For reference
purposes, the existing Pre-Application Schedule is attached as Annex 2.

1.3.6

Should the proposed changes to charging schedule be considered acceptable,
then they could be introduced on 1 April 2020.

1.4

Legal Implications

1.4.1

The Local Government Act 2003 provides the power for local authorities to charge
for discretionary services (as defined in the Local Government Act 1999).
Discretionary services are those services that an authority has the power but not a
duty to provide. An authority may charge where the person who receives the
service has agreed to its provision. The power to charge under this provision
does not apply where the power to provide the service in question already benefits
from a charging power or is subject to an express prohibition from charging.

1.4.2

The Local Government Act 2003 places a duty on authorities to ensure that, taken
one year with another, the income from charges for each kind of discretionary
service does not exceed the costs of provision. An authority may set charges as it
thinks fit, and may, in particular, charge only certain people for a service or charge
different people different amounts.

1.4.3

Local authorities are required to have regard for any guidance that may be issued
by the Secretary of State in terms of carrying out their functions under the 2003
Act. Section 93(7) of the Act provides that certain prohibitions in other legislation
preventing authorities from raising money are specifically dis-applied in relation to
the exercise of the charging power.

P&TAB-KD-Part 1 Public

Page 13

13 November 2019

4

1.4.4

Local Planning Authorities therefore have powers to recover the costs of preapplication advice in recognition of the time officers have to spend researching
information in order to provide answers to prospective developers or applicants.

1.5

Financial and Value for Money Considerations

1.5.1

It is appropriate to review the protocol and charging schedule every year, to
ensure the evidence base is up to date. This will ensure that we are responsive to
the needs of the customer and that the charging schedule is fairly applied.

1.6

Risk Assessment

1.6.1

Robust monitoring should be carried out every year to ensure the protocol and
charging schedule in place is based on up to date evidence.

1.7

Equality Impact Assessment

1.7.1

The decisions recommended through this paper have a remote or low relevance
to the substance of the Equality Act. There is no perceived impact on end users.

1.8

Recommendations

1.8.1

It is RECOMMENDED TO CABINET to APPROVE the following amendment with
effect from 1 April 2020:


Adopt the updated Pre-application Charging Schedule 2020/21 as attached
at Annex 1.

Background papers:

contact: Emma Keefe
Louise Reid

Nil
Eleanor Hoyle
Director of Planning, Housing & Environmental Health

P&TAB-KD-Part 1 Public

Page 14

13 November 2019

ANNEX 1

Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council
Pre-application charging schedule 2020/2021
Type of Development

1

2

3

4

5

Fee for written
advice only

Fee for a
meeting at the
Council Offices
and letter

Fee for a
meeting on site
and letter

£126.00

£189.60

£284.40

£105 + VAT

£158 + VAT

£237 + VAT

£158.40

£284.40

£378.00

£132 + VAT

£237 + VAT

£315 + VAT

£189.60

£378.00

£410.40

£158 + VAT

£315 + VAT

£342 + VAT

£524.40

£650.40

£720.00

£437 + VAT

£542 + VAT

£600 +VAT

Householder development

Minor development

Medium development

Major development

Large scale/strategic
development






Site visit/meeting and written response option only
£1,172.40

£977 + VAT
Exemptions
Advice to third parties affected by development proposals
Disabled access
Notes
The charges set out above relate to each separate query submitted to the Council
Further queries and variations raised following the issue of advice by the Council will be
subject to a new fee

Page 15

This page is intentionally left blank

ANNEX 2

Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council
Pre-application charging schedule 2019/2020
Type of Development

1

2

3

4

5

Fee for written
advice only

Fee for a
meeting at the
Council Offices
and letter

Fee for a
meeting on site
and letter

£123.60

£186.00

£278.40

£103 + VAT

£155 + VAT

£232 + VAT

£154.80

£278.40

£370.80

£129 + VAT

£232 + VAT

£309 + VAT

£186.00

£370.80

£402.00

£155 + VAT

£309 + VAT

£335 + VAT

£513.60

£637.20

£705.60

£428 + VAT

£531 + VAT

£588 +VAT

Householder development

Minor development

Medium development

Major development

Large scale/strategic
development






Site visit/meeting and written response option only
£1,149.60

£958 + VAT
Exemptions
Advice to third parties affected by development proposals
Disabled access
Notes
The charges set out above relate to each separate query submitted to the Council
Further queries and variations raised following the issue of advice by the Council will be
subject to a new fee

Page 17

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
TONBRIDGE & MALLING BOROUGH COUNCIL
PLANNING and TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY BOARD
13 November 2019
Report of the Director of Planning, Housing & Environmental Health
Part 1- Public
Matters for Recommendation to Cabinet - Non-Key Decision (Decision may be taken
by the Cabinet Member)
1

PLANNING PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT PROTOCOL
Summary
This report seeks approval for the adoption of a Planning Performance
Agreement Protocol, which is intended to provide a clear and transparent
framework in respect of how the Service will encourage the use of PPAs in
all appropriate circumstances and how such agreements will be
administered and facilitated. The use of PPAs will incur fees for the
management of the tasks agreed within them and as such this report
proposed a fee schedule.

1.1

Introduction

1.1.1

Members will be aware that the Service is continuing to receive increasingly
complex schemes for planning permission which demand dedicated resources in
order to process, assess and determine in an effective and efficient manner. This
will inevitably continue as the Local Plan progresses through examination and
adoption.

1.1.2

One useful way to assist in managing such cases is through a Planning
Performance Agreement (PPA). This is a project management tool which the
local planning authorities and applicants can use to agree timescales, actions and
resources for handling particular applications.

1.2

Relevant policies and guidance

1.2.1

The Council's objectives in producing such a protocol are consistent with the
National Planning Policy Framework (2019) (NPPF).

1.2.2

Paragraph 46 of the NPPF relates to the enforcement of planning control and
states:
“Applicants and local planning authorities should consider the potential for
voluntary planning performance agreements, where this might achieve a faster
and more effective application process. Planning performance agreements are

P&TAB-NKD-Part 1 Public

Page 19

13 November 2019

2

likely to be needed for applications that are particularly large or complex to
determine.”
1.3

Use of Planning Performance Agreements

1.3.1

PPAs can be particularly useful in setting out an efficient and transparent process
for determining large and/or complex planning applications. They encourage joint
working between the applicant and local planning authority, and can also help to
bring together other parties such as statutory consultees. A PPA is agreed
voluntarily between the applicant and the local planning authority prior to the
application being submitted, and can be a useful focus of pre-application
discussions about the issues that will need to be addressed.

1.3.2

They allow for both the developer and the local planning authority to agree a
project plan and programme which will include the appropriate resources
necessary to determine the planning application or pre-application master
planning within a defined timetable.

1.3.3

In order to ensure prospective applicants, developers and agents understand how
the Council intends to deal with PPAs, a protocol and fee charging schedule has
been drafted and is produced as an annexe to this report.

1.3.4

Given that at this juncture the fees that would be collected as a result of such
charging is somewhat of an unknown quantity, it is not possible to accurately
project what income might be generated at this time. A report back on this, along
with experiences gained from having the protocol in place would be made next
year. The detailed contents of the protocol and the fees charged could then be
formally reviewed.

1.3.5

This protocol should be read alongside the pre-application protocol and charging
regime and the local validation requirements which are already published on the
Council’s website.

1.3.6

It is the intention to review the protocol within the first 12 months to allow for an
assessment of its effectiveness as a tool in assisting efficient decision making.

1.4

Legal Implications

1.4.1

PPAs are intended to be agreed in the spirit of a ‘memorandum of understanding’.
They are not intended to be a legally binding contract, unless the parties wish to
approach it in this way. It is helpful to be clear about its status in the planning
performance agreement itself. The parties are encouraged to make the existence
and content of a planning performance agreement publicly available, so that the
agreed process and timescale are transparent.

1.4.2

A PPA does not differ from other forms of pre-application engagement. It does
not commit the local planning authority to a particular outcome. It is instead a
commitment to a process and timetable for determining an application.

P&TAB-NKD-Part 1 Public

Page 20

13 November 2019

3

1.5

Financial and Value for Money Considerations

1.5.1

The Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) states that local planning authorities may
make a charge for the administrative work involved in agreeing and implementing
the planning performance agreement itself. As such, a fee schedule is produced
as an appendix to the protocol.

1.5.2

Officers have taken the opportunity to carry out appropriate benchmarking with
other authorities in Kent to ensure that the fees set are proportionate. The fees to
be charged should be subject to annual review.

1.6

Risk Assessment

1.6.1

Encouraging the use of PPAs at the early stages of engagement with applicants,
agents and developers will create greater certainty in the decision making process
in terms of expectations placed on each of the parties and in particular timescales
for determination. This should assist in ensuring appeals against nondetermination are avoided because the existence of a PPA means that the
statutory time limits for determining the application no longer apply (to the extent
that the agreement specifies a longer period for the decision, in which case the
agreement will count in the same way as an agreed extension of time). If an
authority fails to determine the application by the agreed date, then the applicant
may appeal.

1.7

Equality Impact Assessment

1.7.1

None required.

1.8

Recommendations

1.8.1

It is RECOMMENDED TO CABINET to APPROVE the following proposals:
1)

Adopt the Planning Performance Agreement Protocol as attached at
Annex 1;

2)

Adopt the Planning Performance Agreement Protocol Appendix 1 Fee
Schedule as attached at Annex 2.

The Director of Planning, Housing & Environmental Health confirms that the proposals
contained in the recommendation(s), if approved, will fall within the Council's Budget
and Policy Framework.
Background papers:
Planning Performance Agreements Protocol and
associated appendices [1] and [2]

contact: Emma Keefe
Louise Reid

Eleanor Hoyle
Director of Planning, Housing & Environmental Health

P&TAB-NKD-Part 1 Public

Page 21

13 November 2019

This page is intentionally left blank

ANNEX 1
Contents:
1

Introduction and Context

2

Aims and Scope

3

Benefits

4

Types of development

5

Community Engagement

6

Member Involvement

7

TMBC responsibilities and commitments

8

Developer responsibilities and commitments

9

Funding

Appendices

Appendix 1: Fee Schedule

Appendix 2: Agreement Template

Page 23

1.

Introduction and Context

1.1 A planning performance agreement (PPA) is a project management tool which
the local planning authorities and applicants can use to agree timescales,
actions and resources for handling particular applications. It should cover the
pre-application and application stages but may also extend through to the postapplication stage, such as the discharge of planning conditions.
1.2 They can be particularly useful in setting out an efficient and transparent
process for determining large and/or complex planning applications. They
encourage joint working between the applicant and local planning authority,
and can also help to bring together other parties such as statutory consultees.
A PPA is agreed voluntarily between the applicant and the local planning
authority prior to the application being submitted, and can be a useful focus of
pre-application discussions about the issues that will need to be addressed.
1.3 They allow for both the developer and the local planning authority to agree a
project plan and programme which will include the appropriate resources
necessary to determine the planning application or pre-application master
planning within a defined timetable.
2.

Aims and Scope

2.1 Tonbridge and Malling BC wants to ensure that planning applications are dealt
with in a timely and effective way. We recognise that the successful delivery of
development of all scales requires good communications with developers, the
community and other agencies. This can reduce delays, conflicting advice and
increase certainty for all involved in the planning process. We will work in
partnership with the development industry and communities enabling us to work
more efficiently and transparently to achieve this and the use of PPAs is an
important tool in facilitating such practices.
3.

Benefits

3.1 There are many benefits and advantages of a PPA between the Council and a
developer, including:


Better overall management of advice and post application stages;



Identification of key issues at an early stage;



More realistic and predictable timetables;



Greater accountability and transparency;



Improved partnership working.

2

Page 24

3.2 It should be noted that the PPA agreement and the process of PPAs is in no
way prejudicing or pre-judging the outcome of the application or the Council’s
impartiality or its discretion as local planning authority.
4.

Types of development

4.1 In PPAs can be used for any application, although whether an agreement is
justified will depend on the size and complexity of the proposal. However,
developments that are likely to qualify for this approach would generally fall
within the category of large-scale major applications or significant
developments, which are unique, complex schemes. This further detailed in
the Fee Schedule, produced at Appendix 1 of this document.
4.2 Not all developments that fall within these criteria are necessarily suitable for
planning performance agreements. Equally, other developments may also be
suitable for the PPA approach such as:


Individual developments and development programmes of major strategic
importance to Tonbridge and Malling in terms of housing delivery, job
creation or investment;



Individual developments which may raise significant issues needing
environmental assessment, where particularly challenging constraints are
present or where matters relating to conservation of the built environment
and/or urban design or heritage apply, for example;



Developments which are a corporate priority which may have a wider
Council involvement;



Developments eligible for limited public funding;



Individual development parcels of larger strategic sites to ensure
consistency and timely delivery of the wider scheme and any associated
infrastructure.

4.3 Officers will advise developers at the pre-application stage if a scheme is
considered appropriate for progression via a PPA. In the event that this
opportunity is not taken up (i.e. an application is subsequently submitted
without engagement concerning such an agreement), it will be handled as a
routine application within the existing work load of the team, without dedicated
resource or priority, regardless of its particular nature.
5.

Community Engagement

5.1 As part of its ongoing pledge to community engagement and consultation the
Council is committed to consulting local residents and businesses to inform its
decisions so they have a meaningful opportunity to influence the development
of Tonbridge and Malling. The type of consultation that is appropriate before
3

Page 25

applications are made will vary depending upon the scheme and will be agreed
via the PPA but could include public exhibitions and meetings, surveys of
opinion and consultation with other key local groups. The Council will expect
the developer to carry out the consultation but can provide advice on the most
appropriate methods for doing so and the groups they may wish to consult.
6.

Member Involvement

6.1 Councillors should be involved so they can gain an understanding of the project
and other relevant issues. Any such involvement will always be led by the
Council. They may ask questions and raise issues but will not be expected to
offer personal opinions on a scheme. All Councillors will need to adhere to the
Code of Conduct for Members in this respect and cannot predetermine their
view on a scheme that will subsequently be the subject of a planning
application.
6.2 Applicants should not engage privately with councillors. There will be
occasions when briefings may be held with relevant councillors particularly
those whose electoral ward the PPA scheme is situated. This will be agreed on
a case by case basis between the two project teams.
7.

TMBC responsibilities and commitments

7.1 TMBC will identify a lead case officer who will manage the process and take on
the responsibility of project delivery. This will be a council officer with
experience relevant to the nature and scale of development proposed. The
Council, via the lead case officer will:


Act as the primary point of contact with the developer’s project team and
where necessary arrange meetings between the project teams in a timely
manner;



Progress the project through all key stages in accordance with the agreed
project plan through ongoing review and communication;



Ensure delivery of tasks within the agreed timetable through regular review
of the programme, provision of feedback on key stages where necessary
and identification of early key issues;



Coordinate the Council’s project team;



Manage all public consultation including the coordination of all external
statutory or specialist advisers and liaise with all necessary stakeholders.

7.2 All case officers will work on behalf of TMBC in the wider public interest to
ensure delivery of the optimum scheme that meets the Council’s strategic
objectives and accordance with all relevant planning policy. Officers in meeting
their responsibilities will express their own professional judgment that will form
4

Page 26

the basis for the negotiations with the developer. Such judgements will not,
however, bind the Council to a final recommendation nor will they override the
requirements for a planning application to be determined without prejudice and
within the statutory requirements.
8.

Developer responsibilities and commitments

8.1 TMBC will expect the development to approach any project in a collaborative
manner and work cooperatively with the Council at all stages. The developer
will be expected to use best endeavours to meet the agreed programme and to
provide any information requested in a timely manner. They will also be
expected to appoint the appropriate professional consultants with sufficient
experience to reflect the complexity of any given project.
8.2 In particular, the developer will:

9.



Engage in meaningful pre-application discussions, with adequate time
allowed for the preparation of essential information and assessment of
proposals and as part of this progress with master planning work as
necessary.



Agree to a project plan, including the key stages and milestones, which take
into account the need for discussion and review to take place;



Pay the required fees;



Submit a complete planning application with all of the requested supporting
information as agreed with the Council, including a draft legal agreement
where appropriate.



Respond within the agreed timescales to requests for further information
and/or revisions;



Attend project meetings with relevant persons;



Keep the Council informed of progress at all key stages of the project;



Undertake public consultation prior to submission where agreed.

Funding

9.1 TMBC expects the developer entering into a PPA with the Borough Council to
pay the agreed PPA fee at the required time. The PPA schedule of charges, as
set out at Appendix 1, will be published on the Council’s website and will be
periodically reviewed.

5

Page 27

This page is intentionally left blank

ANNEX 2
Planning Performance Agreement Protocol
Appendix 1: Fee Schedule

Development Type

Residential Units

Page 29

Meetings

Member Briefings

Fee

Under 50

Commercial
Floorspace
Up to 2,500 sq.m

Small

Up to 2

0

£3,500

Medium

50 – 99

2,500 – 4,999 sq.m

Up to 3

Up to 1

£5,000

Large

100 – 249

5,000 – 9,999 sq.m

Up to 4

Up to 1

£7,500

Strategic

Over 250

Over 10,000 sq.m

Up to 4

Up to 2

£10,000 (where a
design reviews is
agreed as necessary
this is paid for
separately)

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 2: Template Agreement

ANNEX 2
Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council
Gibson Building
Gibson Drive
Kings Hill
West Malling
Kent
ME19 4LZ

Planning Performance Agreement

DATE

SITE ADDRESS

PLANNING REFERENCE

Between:

Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council
and

AGENT/APPLICANT

Page 31

Planning Performance Agreements

Excerpt from the National Planning Practice Guidance, paragraph 016 Reference ID: 20-1620150326 (revised 26 March 2015):

A planning performance agreement is a project management tool which the local planning
authorities and applicants can use to agree timescales, actions and resources for handling
particular applications. It should cover the pre-application and application stages but may also
extend through to the post-application stage.

Planning performance agreements can be particularly useful in setting out an efficient and
transparent process for determining large and/or complex planning applications. They encourage
joint working between the applicant and local planning authority, and can also help to bring
together other parties such as statutory consultees.

A planning performance agreement is agreed voluntarily between the applicant and the local
planning authority prior to the application being submitted, and can be a useful focus of preapplication discussions about the issues that will need to be addressed.

Paragraph 018: Reference ID: 20-018-20150326

A planning performance agreement can extend to matters beyond the formal application process
– such as programming the negotiation of any section 106 agreement and related non-planning
consents. For very large or complex schemes the agreement may also provide a basis for any
voluntary contributions which the applicant has offered to pay to assist with abnormal costs of
processing the application. The parties will want to ensure that such payments do not exceed the
cost of the additional work involved, are not seen to have any implications for the decision on the
application, and do not deflect resources from processing other cases; any additional resource
provided in this way needs to be used for additional capacity that is genuinely required to ensure
a timely and effective service.

Page 32

Contents:
1.

Introduction and Purpose

2.

General Principles

3.

Form and Content of the Pre-application submission

4.

Resources and Liaison

5.

Application (Project) Programme

6.

Appeals and Third Party Challenges

7.

Nature of Agreement

8.

Breach and Termination

9.

Third Party Rights

10.

Agreement

Appendix 1: Project Programme
Appendix 2: Project Team Contact List
Appendix 3: Documents

Page 33

1.

1.1

Introduction and Purpose

Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council is the local planning authority for development
within the area in which the development site is located.

1.2

The applicant has submitted a pre-application submission seeking advice regarding the
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL.

1.3

This Planning Performance Agreement is an agreement between TMBC and the Applicant
to provide a project management framework for handling both this pre-application
submission and the forthcoming planning application from receipt of a valid submission
through to the determination stage. This framework seeks to appropriately resource these
discussions and should improve and speed up the pre-application advice process by
committing both parties to an agreed timetable containing “milestones” that make clear what
level of resources and actions are required and ensure that all key planning issues are
properly considered and, wherever possible, resolved.

1.4

This agreement does not give a guarantee of planning permission. It relates to the process
of considering development proposals and not the decision itself.

1.5

This agreement is made pursuant to Section 111 of the Local Government Act
1972 Section 93 of the Local Government Act 2003 and Section 1 of the Localism
Act 2011.

1.6

1.6.1

Definitions

Terms in this agreement shall have the meanings assigned below unless the
context requires otherwise:
Applicant
Applicant’s Team

Those personnel employed or
appointed by the Applicant in
connection with the Project set out at
Table 1 of Appendix 2

Page 34

Application Documents

The documents set out at Part 2 of
Appendix 3 of this agreement

Planning Counsel

Any of the following Barristers:

Pre Application Documents

The documents set out at Part 1 of
Appendix 3 of this agreement

Project

DESCRIPTION

Site

SITE ADDRESS

Third Party Challenge

Any legal challenge against a decision
made by TMBC in connection with the
Project, including any appeal in the
higher courts.
Tonbridge and Malling Borough
Council
Those TMBC personnel involved in
the Project as set out at Table 2 of
Appendix 2

TMBC
TMBC’s Team

2.
2.1

General Principles
The objective of this Planning Performance Agreement is one of co-operation and
consistency throughout the negotiation and discussion relating to the pre-application and
application processes to provide a degree of certainty for the intended outcomes and to
improve the quality of the Project and of the planning decision.

2.2

TMBC and the Applicant agree to be governed at all times by the following principles:
Principle 1:

To work together in good faith, and to respect each other’s interests and
confidentiality.

Principle 2:

To commit and provide promptly information to support and manage the
development management process, in accordance with the Performance
Standards contained in paragraph 4.4 of this agreement.

Principle 3:

To be transparent and consistent at all times between all parties so that
outcomes are anticipated, defined and understood.

Page 35

Principle 4:

To help to facilitate (where appropriate) effective involvement and
consultation with the surrounding community, statutory and other
stakeholders, and any individual or group with a legitimate interest.

Principle 5:

To reach agreement milestones which will remain fixed unless agreed by
all parties otherwise.

Principle 6:

To identify and involve specialist consultees and advisors including
authority officers/managers where appropriate.

Principle 7:

All parties will seek to use the pre-application period to address matters that
would otherwise arise via planning conditions, and significantly reduce the
level of potential conditions, particularly in respect to those preventing
commencement of works. However, nothing in this Principle shall fetter the
TMBC’s power as local planning authority to impose such conditions on any
grant of planning permission in connection with the Project as it considers
appropriate in its absolute discretion.

3.

Form and Content of the Pre-Application Submission

3.1

The pre-application discussions relate to the Project’s need for TYPE planning permission.

3.2

The greater the level of information that can be provided at the pre-application stage, the
better and more detailed the advice which can be provided to the applicant. With this in
mind, key documents that will influence the nature of a development coming forward will
be requested at the earliest opportunity during the pre-application discussions. The dates
for the provision of such information shall be fed into the timetabling to help TMBC
efficiently allocate time and resources.

3.3

The Applicant shall provide TMBC with the Pre-Application Documentation (as a minimum)
as part of the pre-application discussion process.

4.

Resources and Liaison

4.1

The Project Team

Page 36

The Project Team will comprise of the Applicant’s Team and TMBC’s Team, as defined
within Appendix 2. The Project Team will be amended/expanded or reduced where
necessary and the party amending its Team shall notify the other Team at the earliest
opportunity. All personnel shall be suitably qualified and experienced to bring forward the
Project.
4.2

4.2.1

Performance Standards

Communications, be it via email or hard copy correspondence shall be acknowledged
within 5 (AMEND AS NECESSARY) working days of receipt with a suitable response
where possible.

4.2.2

Telephone messages shall be returned within 3 (AMEND AS NECESSARY) working days
of receipt.

4.2.3

Relevant information will be circulated by all parties no later than 3 (AMEND AS
NECESSARY) working days prior to a meeting.

4.2.4

The Applicant’s Planning Agent to circulate meeting agendas, unless otherwise agreed, no
later than 3 (AMEND AS NECESSARY) working days prior to any meeting.

4.2.5

Unless otherwise agreed, the Applicant’s Planning Agent will circulate minutes no later
than 3 (AMEND AS NECESSARY) working days after the meeting.

4.2.6

Unless otherwise agreed, actions arising from meetings shall be agreed no later than 5
(AMEND AS NECESSARY) working days after the minutes of that meeting have been
circulated.

4.2.7

If requested by the Applicant or Applicant’s Planning Agent, TMBC shall provide informal
feedback on information presented at a meeting within 10 (AMEND AS NECESSARY)
working days from that meeting.

Page 37

4.3

4.3.1

Meetings

Meetings will be attended by the Project Team (unless specific attendance is not required
due to meeting topic).

4.3.2

The Applicant’s Planning Agent, in conjunction with the TMBC Case Officer, will act as
PPA Project Managers and will convene meetings, organise agendas and produce
minutes to be agreed by the Project Team.

4.3.3

Project Team meetings will be held at the times set out in the Project Programme (unless
otherwise agreed, or cancelled).

4.3.4

Three working days (AMEND AS NECESSARY) in advance of any meeting the Project
Team shall agree whether any specialist advice is required and seek to ensure the
relevant personnel are available to attend.

4.4

Availability of People and Resources

4.4.1

The parties to this agreement will endeavour to make available members of the Project
Team to facilitate meetings within 10 (AMEND AS NECESSARY) working days from a
formal written request, unless otherwise agreed.

4.4.2 The parties will also share with each other project tools (such as traffic models,
visualisation models and development viability information) subject to protecting
commercial confidentiality and Freedom of Information considerations.
4.5

Confidentiality

4.5.1

Confidentiality protocols will be agreed and applied to specific issues and/or information as
they emerge.

4.6

Costs

4.6.1 The Applicant commits to cover all charges from DATE.

Page 38

i)

TMBC’s costs incurred in the staffing and resourcing of necessary meetings between
TMBC’s Team and the Applicant’s Team during the life of the pre-application discussion
(FINF REFERENCE). The pre-application protocol for TMBC is available on the Council’s
website www.tmbc.gov.uk.

Charges incurred to date (to be paid on the date of this agreement):

Meeting at TMBC DATE

£ ???.??

Site Visit DATE

£ ???.??

PPA and initial written response

£ ???.??
£ ???.??

ii) Subsequent meetings will be charged under the TMBC pre-application protocol for
strategic sites at FINF FEE which will include all background material and research work.
iii) In the event that it is agreed between the parties that legal representation is required at
any meeting, the Applicant shall pay TMBC’s costs in connection with its legal adviser.
iv) TMBC’s legal adviser shall be its internal planning lawyer (at the date of this agreement
the post-holder designated as “Principal Solicitor (Litigation)”) unless due to resourcing
issues it is necessary for TMBC to appoint an external solicitor to provide advice and
representation.
v) The costs of such representation shall be:
a. in the case of the internal solicitor the rates set by TMBC’s Finance, Property and
Innovation Board (as amended from time to time) which at the date of this
agreement are FEE per hour, to a maximum of 5 (AMEND AS NECESSARY)
hours. If additional work is required this sum shall only increase with the written
agreement of the Project Team.
b. in the case of external representation the full costs of such representation.
vi) In the event that TMBC deems necessary (in its reasonable opinion) to appoint external
consultants to provide an independent review of any of the Application Documents or PreApplication Documents (or to provide technical advice in connection with consultation
responses), the Applicant shall pay the full costs of such external consultants. This shall
relate to a maximum of 5 (AMEND AS NECESSARY) separate reports, including the
Viability Report, at a maximum cost of FEE per area of expertise. If additional work is
required this sum shall only increase with the written agreement of the Project Team.

Page 39

4.6.2 If required by TMBC the Applicant will pay TMBC the costs of appointing an additional
Planning Officer (not to be part of the Project Team) for the duration of the Project to
enable TMBC to adequately resource the Project within the timescales set out in this
agreement. This shall be at a cost of FEE per hour (for an agency planner of medium
experience) for a 37 hour week.
4.6.3 TMBC will invoice the Applicant for each payment due within 5 (AMEND AS
NECESSARY) working days of a meeting taking place.

4.6.4 The Applicant will pay such invoices within 28 days. In the event the Applicant does not
pay any invoice when it becomes due, TMBC reserve the right to refuse any additional
meetings unless and until outstanding invoices are paid.
5.

Application (Project) Programme

5.1

The Applicant will not submit the planning application to TMBC until the Pre-Application
Documentation has been submitted and the contents of that documentation has been
reviewed and TMBC has had the opportunity to offer informal comment.

5.2

When the Applicant submits the planning application for the Project, the planning
application will include the Application Documentation listed in Appendix 3. The
submission shall be made by CD or DVD and also include 7 paper copies.

5.3

The PPA Programme is devised to provide a realistic timeframe for planning and
resourcing the pre-application discussions, with the aim of agreeing a submission date.
The Applicant acknowledges that the timetable may be subject to change which will be
kept under review moving forward. The Project Programme is detailed in Appendix 1 of
this document.

5.4

It has been agreed that a ?? (AMEND AS NECESSARY) week timeframe for the Project
programme is appropriate for consideration of the planning application and a resolution
from Full Council/Area Planning Committee. The subsequent negotiation of the S106
agreement will be undertaken speedily by both parties.

Page 40

5.5

Within the agreed timeframe, meetings will be arranged as above and when considered
necessary by agreement, with suggestions of appropriate meetings set out within the
Project Programme (Appendix 1).

5.6

If there is a delay in the Project Programme, the Project Team will review whether the
Project Programme is still realistic or whether the Project Programme and the Planning
Performance Agreement determination timeframe need to be revised. Any revisions to the
Planning Performance Agreement determination timeframe shall be agreed in writing by
the Applicant and TMBC.

5.7

At the request of any party to this agreement, the parties shall as soon as is reasonably
practicable [after the expiry of xx weeks from the date of this agreement] in good faith
discuss the progress of the consideration of the planning application (or Pre-Application
Documents as may be the case) against the project programme as set out at Appendix 1
and review whether any extension of any period will be necessary in order to enable
TMBC to discharge its planning functions in respect of the Project and ensure compliance
with the project programme.

6.

Appeals and Third Party Challenges

6.1

Nothing in this agreement shall restrict or inhibit the Applicant from exercising their right of
appeal under Section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. In the event of such
an appeal, this agreement shall terminate immediately without further notice to either
party, save in respect of the invoicing arrangements at clause 4.6 for any outstanding
payments.

6.2

In the event of a Third Party Challenge, the Developer and TMBC shall jointly appoint such
expert legal representation from Planning Counsel as shall be agreed between them, and
upon such appointment shall request a legal opinion as to the merits of the challenge and
the likelihood of a successful defence. The parties shall bear the costs of such instruction
equally.

6.3

In the event that Planning Counsel’s opinion is that the Third Party Challenge has a
reasonable prospect of success, TMBC shall consider whether to revoke or modify the
relevant planning permission, or to consent to judgement.

Page 41

6.4

Should TMBC decide to revoke or modify planning permission in relation to the Project on
the advice of Planning Counsel, and such a determination would ordinarily attract the
payment of compensation under s.107 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (or
otherwise), the Applicant shall not pursue the payment of any such compensation.

6.5

If TMBC decides to proceed with the defence of a Third Party Challenge against the
advice of Planning Counsel, it shall do so at its own cost.

6.6

In the event that Planning Counsel’s opinion is that the Third Party Challenge does not
have a reasonable prospect of success, or more generally gives a positive opinion that the
decision under challenge is suitably robust, the parties agree to joint instruction of
Planning Counsel for the purposes of defending the Third Party Challenge and will bear
the costs of such instruction equally.

6.7

Nothing in this agreement affects the ability of TMBC or the Applicant to instruct their own
solicitors to provide advice and assistance in connection with any Third Party Challenge.

7.

Nature of Agreement

7.1

Nothing in this Agreement shall operate or be construed as any fetter on TMBC’s
discretion either as the local planning authority in connection with the Project or more
generally as a local authority. For the avoidance of doubt, nothing in this agreement is
intended to commit TMBC to the delivery of an approval of any planning application.

7.2

If any provision of this agreement is held by any court or other competent body to be void
or unenforceable in whole or in part, then the other unaffected remaining provisions of the
agreement shall continue.

7.3

Nothing in this agreement shall create, or be deemed to create, a partnership between the
parties.

8.

Breach and Termination
If any party shall commit any breach of its obligations under this agreement and shall not
remedy the breach within 10 working days of written notice from the other party to do so,
then the other party may notify the party in breach that it wishes to terminate this
agreement forthwith and the agreement shall be terminated immediately upon the giving of

Page 42

written notice to this effect to the party in breach provided always that the breach is within
the control of the party that is in breach and capable of being remedied.
9.

Third Party Rights

9.1

Nothing in this agreement creates, or is intended to create, any right for any third party to
enforce its provisions by virtue of the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999.

9.2

Without prejudice to clause 9.1, this agreement may be varied, revoked, modified or
supplemented without the consent of any third party.

10.

Agreement
TMBC and the Applicant hereby agree to the content of this Planning Performance
Agreement.
Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council
Name:
Signature:
Position:
On Behalf Of:
Date:

Applicant
Name:
Signature:
Position:
On Behalf Of:
Date:

Page 43

APPENDIX 1 – PROJECT PROGRAMME
TMBC and the Applicant shall work to ensure that the consideration of the proposal is
progressed in accordance with the Pre-application programme set out below (unless a
variation to the Pre-application programme is agreed in writing in by both the Applicant
and TMBC).
Project Programme - Pre-application Phase
Task

Party(ies) involved

Signing Planning Performance Agreement

Council and Developer
Co-ordinator

Pre-application meetings

Planning Officer(s) and
Developer Coordinator

Presentation to Members

Planning Officer(s) and
Developer Coordinator

Public Consultation
Public Exhibitions

Developer Co-ordinator

Submission of all outstanding pre-application Developer Co-ordinator
documents
Consideration of submitted pre-application
documents

Planning Officer (s) and
Statutory Consultees

Further pre-application meeting
Planning Officer to arrange with internal
Council personnel
Developer Co-ordinator to arrange with
EA and KCC H+T (AMEND AS NECESSARY)

Planning Officer(s) and
Developer Co-ordinator

Page 44

W/b or Date

Project Programme - Application Phase
The timescales are based upon the following assumptions:
The Developer to submit DATE
No more than 2 (AMEND AS NECESSARY) joint working meetings are required
The outcomes of the joint working meetings are productive and that all resulting matters
can be resolved
The application is not called in by the Secretary of State

Task

Party(ies) involved

Submission of Application and consideration
of the validity of the Application

Development Coordinator and
Planning Officer(s)

Registration and validation of the application
(provided that the Application is valid)

Technician and
Planning Officer(s)

Consultation in respect of the Application
1st Joint Working Meeting - consideration of
consultation responses received

Planning Officer(s) and
Developer Coordinator

Developer Co-ordinator to address issues
raised in the joint working meeting and
submit further information if required

Developer Coordinator

2nd Joint Working Meeting

Planning Officer(s) /
Developer
representatives

Developer Co-ordinator to address issues
raised in the 2nd joint working meeting and
submit further information if required

Developer Coordinator

Re-consultation on amended or additional
information

Planning Officer (s)

Page 45

W/b or Date

Decision stage
Preparation of Members Briefing Note

Planning Officer (s)

Organisation of Members Site
Inspection

Full Council/Planning
Committee

Developer Co-ordinator to address any
issues raised and submit amendments
and/or additional information

Developer Co-ordinator

Preparation and submission of Report
to Full Council/Planning Committee

Planning Officer(s)

Consideration by Full Council/Planning
Committee

Full
Council/Planning
Committee

Negotiation and completion of Section
106 agreement

Council legal
representative /
Planning Officer(s) /
Developer
representative

Referral to Secretary of State

Planning Officer (s)

(three weeks)
Issue of planning application decision
notice

Planning Officer(s)

Page 46

Both parties to use their best
endeavours to negotiate the
S106 agreement and release
the decision within 4 months
of the date of the Full Council
recommendation

APPENDIX 2 – PROJECT TEAM
Table 1 – Applicant’s Team
Company

Contact
Names

Responsibility

Telephone
No

Page 47

Email

Table 2 – TMBC’s Team

Tonbridge
and
Malling
Borough
Council

NAME

POSITION

TELE NO.

Page 48

EMAIL

Appendix 3
Part 1 – Pre Application Documents

FOR EXAMPLE


The Masterplan



Draft Planning Statement addressing all relevant policies



Transport Statement



Draft Flood Risk Assessment



Contaminated Land Factual Report



Odour Risk Assessment



Draft Air Quality Chapter



Draft Ecology Appraisal including GCN, Reptile and Bat surveys

Page 49

Appendix 3
Part 2 – Application Documents

FOR EXAMPLE


Masterplan



Planning Statement



Employment Land Market Review



Affordable housing statement



Archaeological and Heritage assessment



Design and Access Statement



Landscaping details



Open, play space and recreational assessment



Photographs and photomontages



Parking and servicing provision



Draft Head of terms for planning obligation



Schedule of works



Telecommunications information



Transport assessment



Utilities and foul sewage assessment



Viability statement



Environmental Statement to include
Air quality assessment
Biodiversity survey
Contaminated land assessment
Flood risk assessment
Noise impact assessment

and the following information as detailed in the Scoping Report REFERENCE IF APPLICABLE
issued DATE

Page 50

Agenda Item 6
TONBRIDGE & MALLING BOROUGH COUNCIL
PLANNING and TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY BOARD
13 November 2019
Report of the Director of Planning, Housing & Environmental Health
Part 1- Public
Matters for Recommendation to Cabinet - Non-Key Decision (Decision may be taken
by the Cabinet Member)
1

SELF BUILD REGISTER UPDATE
This report updates Members in respect of the Council’s Self-Build and
Custom Housebuilding Register and specifically the introduction of
eligibility criteria including a local connections test and a financial solvency
test. The report also seeks agreement for the introduction of an
administration fee.

1.1

Introduction

1.1.1

The Self-Build and Custom Housebuilding Act 2015 and subsequent Self-Build
and Custom Housebuilding Regulations 2016 require ‘Relevant Authorities’,
including Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council, to have established and
publicised a Self-Build and Custom Housebuilding Register by 1st April 2016. The
registers are intended to identify the demand for self-build and custom
housebuilding within each Relevant Authority’s area. To meet this requirement,
Officers in the Planning Policy team created a register from 1st April 2016. Details
on how to currently apply can be found on the TMBC website.

1.1.2

The Council is required to have regard to the register in its planning, housing,
regeneration and land disposal functions. Further details regarding these
requirements, including the duty to provide ‘sustainable development permission’
to meet the demand for self-build and custom housebuilding, are set out within the
Housing and Planning Act 2006.

1.1.3

There are currently 153 expressions of interest on the register, including one
association of 5 individuals. The effect of introducing the local connections
eligibility criteria could potentially have the effect of reducing those on Part 1 of the
register to 51. This is based only on the addresses of those who applied. This
figure may be higher once further information is sought, for example, if applicants
can demonstrate that they work in the borough. The remaining applicants will
form Part 2 to the register. The duty on the Council to provide plots only applies
to those on Part 1.

P&TAB-NKD-Part 1 Public

Page 51

13 November 2019

2

1.1.4

The duty on Relevant Authorities is to give suitable development permission to
enough suitable serviced plots of land to meet the demand for self and custom
housebuilding in their area based on the number of entries within a ‘base period’.
The base period is the year ending 30th October in a given year. The first base
period since the registers were established ended on 30th October 2016.
Relevant Authorities have three years to grant permissions for an equivalent
number of plots of land which are suitable for self and custom housebuilding.

1.1.5

There were 28 registrations in the first base year period (although this would
reduce to approximately 14 with the introduction of the proposed local connectivity
test). There have not been any suitable permissions to date, but provision for
meeting the demand for self-build plots has been included within the draft Local
Plan at Policy LP46.

1.2

The Introduction of Eligibility Criteria for being included on the Register

1.2.1

Eligibility criteria for entry onto the Council’s register are set out in the
Regulations. These originally stated that applicants would be eligible to be placed
on the Council’s register if they are:


aged 18 or over;



a British citizen, a national of an EEA state other than the UK or a national
of Switzerland; and



seeking (either alone or with others) to acquire a serviced plot of land in the
relevant authority’s area to occupy as that individual’s sole or main
residence.

1.2.2

Applications from associations of individuals will only be successful if each
individual meets all the criteria.

1.2.3

The 2016 Regulations were updated in October 2016 and now specify that in
addition to the complying with the eligibility criteria set out above, Relevant
Authorities can introduce eligibility criteria for entry onto their register in the form
of a local connection test (LCT) and a financial solvency test (an assessment of
an applicant’s ability to purchase land for their own self-build project). Relevant
Authorities are also able to introduce an entry fee and an annual charge for
applicants wanting to remain on the register.

1.2.4

The updated 2016 regulations specify that if a Local connections test is
implemented, the register must be split into two parts. All those applicants who
meet all the eligibility criteria (including a local connections test, financial solvency
test and pay the required fee), will be in Part 1 of the register. Those applicants
who fail to meet the local connections test, but otherwise meet the eligibility
criteria, will be placed into Part 2 of the register.

P&TAB-NKD-Part 1 Public

Page 52

13 November 2019

3

1.2.5

Those in Part 1 of the register will be the first to get offered, any suitable self-build
sites that become available. Those on Part 2 of the register would only be offered
these sites, when all those on Part 1 decline the site offered to them.

1.2.6

The Council is required to provide sufficient, suitable development permissions to
meet the demand for self-build and custom housebuilding as evidenced in its
register within three years of the conclusion of each base period. Each base
period is from 31st October until the 30th October the following year. The
subsequent base period will start the next day, after the conclusion of the previous
base period.

1.3

Proposed Way Forward

1.3.1

Given the challenges of finding sufficient land to meet future development needs
in an area of high constraint like Tonbridge and Malling, as demonstrated in the
preparation of the draft Local Plan, the introduction of local eligibility criteria and
the financial capacity to deliver a self-build project is a reasonable expectation.

1.3.2

Proposed Local Connections Test Criteria
1) Criteria have already been introduced by many Local Authorities, including
some near neighbours. The suggested local connection test criteria below are
based on these examples.
2) Applicants must demonstrate that:


They have been a permanent resident of the Borough for three consecutive
years, prior to application or;



They are currently employed within the Borough and have been for a
minimum of the past twelve months (consecutively) or;



They are current self-employed, with an ongoing viable venture where the
work is within the Borough, and has been for a minimum of twelve months
(consecutively) or;



They are in the service of the regular armed forces of the Crown (defined
within the meaning of section 374 of the Armed Forces Act 2006) or have
left regular service within the past 5 years immediately preceding their
application on the Self-Build Register.

3) In respect of the second bullet point, employment must be over 16 hours per
week, and where working hours fluctuate, an average will be taken over the 12
months. For the third bullet point self-employment must be more than 16
hours a week, and where working hours fluctuate, an average will be taken
over the 12 months.

P&TAB-NKD-Part 1 Public

Page 53

13 November 2019

4

4) Regarding the forth bullet point those who have retired from the Armed
Services are eligible period of 5 years after leaving active service. In these
circumstances the Council would require proof of current service; or evidenced
of the past service. This will include the date of leaving service.
1.3.3

Financial Capacity Test
1) Given the duty placed on the Council to provide sufficient suitable
development permissions to meet the demand for self-build and custom
housebuilding plots as evidenced on the register, it is considered reasonable
to also introduce a test that will assess whether an applicant is able to have
the financial ability to purchase land and fund the construction of their selfbuild project within three years of development consent being given.
2) The Government have not published any guidance for Local Authorities on
how such an assessment should be made. It is also acknowledged that the
price of a plot is likely to vary in both its size and location, other external
influences are also likely to affect the price of land, within the Borough.
3) The recommended course of action is to request evidence (in the form of a
principle bank loan agreement or proof of personal savings) from applicants,
which demonstrates that they have sufficient funds to purchase a plot of land
and to fund the construction of their self-build project.
4) The Local Plan evidence base includes a Viability Study Including Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Document (July 2018), which could be used to
assess the estimated costs involved in building your own home. This report
examines recent sales of development land (Table 6.3). The average of a plot
of land across the Borough is £165,254. It is projected that the average cost
per square metre for a self-build project, built to a good standard, using
builders and subcontractors in the South-East, is £1,168 per square metre.
5) When applying these cost estimates to an average three bed semi-detached,
two storey house, with a floor area of 100 square metres the cost would be in
the region of £116,800. These combined land and build costs equate to an
average of £282,054 for a self-build project. It is this figure that the financial
solvency evidence will be assessed against.

1.3.4

Proposed Eligibility Criteria to be Applied to the Tonbridge and Malling Self and
Custom House Building Register
1) Subject to Member approval, the following evidence outlined in the table below
would be requested from applicants already on the Register and would also be
required to support future applications. This would demonstrate that the
applicant has a clear connection to the Borough and has funds sufficient to
pursue a self-build or custom build project.

P&TAB-NKD-Part 1 Public

Page 54

13 November 2019

5

Criteria

Evidence Sought

Age

Copy of passport, driving licence, birth certificate or suitable
equivalent
Copy of passport, identity card or suitable equivalent

Nationality

Historic (at least 3 years old) and current utility bill,
Local
Connections demonstrating name and home address(es) of the applicant or;
Test
Historic (at least 12 months old) and current P45 or Payslip
demonstrating the applicants address(es) of employment or;
Assessment of self-employment statement, the applicant must
provide any evidence that they feel is relevant to support their
statement or;
Proof of employment in the armed forces or previous service up
to five years prior to application.
Finance and Details of savings equivalent or greater to the average price per
Resources
plot (as defined in this document) that could definitely be used
for purchase of land and to fund the construction of a self-build
project or;
In-principle bank loan agreement for the purchasing of the land
and funding of any resources that will be used to construct for
the build.

1.4

Introduction of an Administration Fee

1.4.1

The updated 2016 regulations also enable a Relevant Authority to charge a fee for
entry onto and an annual fee to remain on the register. This fee must only be at a
level to which it is remediating the costs incurred by processing the application.

1.4.2

The proposed fees are £30 for processing new applications to be included on the
register and an annual administration fee of £15.

1.4.3

It is not considered appropriate to charge a registration fee to those on the
existing register. However the annual administration fee of £15 for remaining on
the register will apply.

1.5

Legal Implications

1.5.1

The Council is required to keep and publicise a Self-Build and Custom House
Building Register. There are also duties relating to meeting the needs of those on
the Register.

1.5.2

The application of eligibility criteria and charges is an optional requirement.

P&TAB-NKD-Part 1 Public

Page 55

13 November 2019

6

1.6

Financial and Value for Money Considerations

1.6.1

There are financial implications for maintaining the Register, which can be offset
by the application of administrative fees.

1.6.2

The cost of providing suitable plots will be recovered from the successful self-build
and custom housebuilder.

1.7

Risk Assessment

1.7.1

The introduction of eligibility criteria and administrative charges will have the effect
of reducing the potential financial burdens on the Council.

1.8

Equality Impact Assessment

1.8.1

The decisions recommended through this paper have a remote or low relevance
to the substance of the Equality Act. There is no perceived impact on end users.

1.9

Recommendations

1.9.1

That the proposed eligibility criteria and financial capacity test criteria BE
APPLIED to those already on the Tonbridge and Malling Self Build and Custom
House Building Register and for future applicants as set out in 1.3.4 of this report;
and

1.9.2

That an administration fee as set out in 1.4.1-1.4.3 of this report BE
INTRODUCED for new applicants and that the annual fee BE APPLIED to all of
those on the Register from 1st April 2020.

The Director of Planning, Housing & Environmental Health confirms that the proposals
contained in the recommendation(s), if approved, will fall within the Council's Budget
and Policy Framework.
Background papers:

contact: Ian Bailey
Planning Policy Manager
Mark Taylor
Planning Officer

Nil

Eleanor Hoyle
Director of Planning, Housing & Environmental Health

P&TAB-NKD-Part 1 Public

Page 56

13 November 2019

Agenda Item 7
TONBRIDGE & MALLING BOROUGH COUNCIL
PLANNING and TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY BOARD
13 November 2019
Report of the Director of Planning, Housing & Environmental Health
Part 1- Public
Matters for information
1

PLANNING ENFORCEMENT UPDATE
Summary
This report seeks to update Members on matters pertaining to planning
enforcement.

1.1

Introduction

1.1.1

Matters surrounding planning enforcement were last reported to the Board on 04
June 2019, specifically seeking endorsement of the adoption of a Direct Action
Protocol to sit alongside the main Enforcement Plan. The protocol has since been
published and work has commenced to identify breaches of Notices across the
Borough that could be the subject of such action.

1.1.2

In more general terms, since adoption of the main Plan there has been an
undertaking to periodically review and provide updates on Planning Enforcement
matters.

1.2

Planning Enforcement Funding

1.2.1

In July of this year, the Department of Communities, Housing and Local
Government (DCHLG) gave certain Local Authorities across the country identified
as having large proportions of Green Belt land the opportunity to bid for up to
£50,000 to dedicate towards planning enforcement. The Council made its bid on
the basis that it had recently adopted the Direct Action Protocol and that several
specific projects had been identified within the Green Belt, where considerable
harm was arising from persistent and flagrant breaches, but where the Council felt
it unlikely to be able to successfully recover costs in the event that Direction
Action was pursued.

1.2.2

Brief details of those identified projects are set out below:
1) A long outstanding, unauthorised Traveller site, subject to an appeal against
an Enforcement Notice, which was called in by the Secretary of State and
upheld. That decision was then challenged in the High Court and Court of
Appeal and permission to be considered by the Supreme Court has recently
been rejected. Following this, the Council took immediate steps to seek

P&TAB-Part 1 Public

Page 57

13 November 2019

2

compliance with the extant notice. Residential occupation has subsequently
ceased, however various caravans and associated development has been left
behind. The Council has since taken steps to secure the site to prevent any
return to unauthorised residential occupation but structures remaining in situ
continue to cause harm in their own right and in breach of the notice. The risk
that whilst these remain on site, the owners will make attempts to recommence
residential occupation was also identified.
2) Removal of facilities contained within a garage building which facilitates an
independent residential occupation. Repeated refusals, dismissed appeals
and Notices dating back to 2006 have failed to secure resolution to this
harmful use. The Council successfully prosecuted a breach of a notice
resulting in a fine of £15,000 plus Council costs but even this has not
compelled the owner to comply and the breach (and harm) continues.
3) Removal of a vehicle scrapyard, caravan, associated hardstanding and
buildings where a total of four notices have been served and all dismissed by
the Planning Inspectorate at appeal. There remains no indication of
compliance and no engagement can be secured with the owner.
4) Two further sites subject to ongoing unauthorised open storage uses where
the Council has repeatedly sought to secure compliance through notices but
the site owners refuse to engage with the process.
1.2.3

The identified projects were considered to inevitably incur the most expense if
Direct Action were to be taken, by virtue of their particular nature, the complexities
involved, level of action required, need for storage of items, involvement of bailiffs
and specialist companies to undertake the works required. Coupled with this, it
was considered that in each of the cases identified, the prospect of any costs
recovery was remote at best. It was felt that these factors combined would in all
likelihood render the option of direct action prohibitively costly and action would
therefore not be taken, the substantial level of identified harm effectively
continuing unabated. It was on this basis that the bid was taken forward.

1.2.4

The Council received formal notification in September that the bid was successful
and we will be awarded the full £50,000 towards these projects. Officers are now
compiling full schedules of the works and actions necessary to remedy the
breaches in order to fully cost them and prepare for receipt of the funds.

1.2.5

In terms of the particular projects identified, the funding will allow the Council to
take action to entirely remove significantly harmful development and allow for sites
to be properly and appropriately returned to their formal condition without the risk
that cost recovery would not be possible. Such harm will be completely
ameliorated to the benefit of the openness of the Green Belt and the wider
amenities of the localities affected.

1.2.6

Moreover, and more broadly than the site specific benefits that will be derived
from such action coming forward, Officers are acutely aware that often, there is a

P&TAB-Part 1 Public

Page 58

13 November 2019

3

great amount of public frustration on occasions where Notices are upheld at
appeal or prosecutions are successfully brought about only for no progression to
be seen to be made “on the ground”. The ability to rectify such harmful breaches
of planning control within the Green Belt will undoubtedly not only seek to
maintain public confidence in the planning system but will, it is hoped, further seek
to promote an enhancement in public faith in the system.
1.2.7

The ability to take such conclusive action on sites that are causing such a great
deal of harm also sends a clear and important message to others across the
Borough that breaches of planning control will be taken seriously and that the
Council will take all reasonable and necessary action. This will also serve as a
clear warning to those who continue to breach planning control in a flagrant and
repeated manner and thus act as a preventative tool in the future.

1.2.8

Officers will continue to update Members as this project progresses, once the
funding has been received.

1.2.9

Full regard will be given to the Direct Action Protocol in all steps of the project to
ensure accordance with all relevant statutory and policy duties and requirements.

1.3

Updated Planning Practice Guidance (PPG)

1.3.1

The PPG was updated on 22 July 2019 and is now entitled “Enforcement and
Post Permission Matters: Responding to suspected breaches of planning control.”
New paragraphs have been added to the guidance concerning build out,
completion notices, discontinuance orders and revocation of a planning
permission.

1.3.2

Officers will have full regard to this guidance in undertaking investigations. It is
not considered at this time necessary to formally amend the adopted Plan to take
account of these insertions and the two documents should continue to be read in
conjunction. The adopted Plan would only need formally amending in the event
that any of its contents expressly contradicted national policy or guidance.

1.4

Requesting Retrospective Planning Applications and Expediency

1.4.1

One matter that has previously been raised by Members in respect of planning
enforcement action concerns requesting retrospective planning applications to
regularise works when breaches are identified rather than deciding such action is
“not expedient”. Officers appreciate Members’ frustrations in this respect;
particularly given the majority of residents in the Borough follow the proper
channels and the apparent lack of fairness that some might not.

1.4.2

The PPG and the Council’s adopted Planning Enforcement Plan are both clear in
this respect, setting out that enforcement action should be proportionate to the
breach of planning control to which it relates and taken when it is expedient to do
so. In deciding, in each case, what is the most appropriate way forward, local
planning authorities should usually avoid taking formal enforcement action where:

P&TAB-Part 1 Public

Page 59

13 November 2019

4



there is a trivial or technical breach of control which causes no material harm or
adverse impact on the amenity of the site or the surrounding area;



development is acceptable on its planning merits and formal enforcement action
would solely be to regularise the development;



in their assessment, the local planning authority consider that an application is the
appropriate way forward to regularise the situation, for example, where planning
conditions may need to be imposed.

1.4.3

Investigating officers will continue to carefully and thoroughly consider all the
relevant merits of a case before determining whether the correct approach is to
seek the submission of a retrospective planning application in light of the very
specific guidance given in this respect.

1.5

Section 215 Notices

1.5.1

The adopted enforcement plan continues to be a valuable tool in undertaking
investigations and instigating action where appropriate and proportionate to do so.
One specific aspect of planning enforcement that causes a high volume of
complaints across the Borough centres on untidy sites and powers afforded to the
Council as Local Planning Authority under Section 215 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 (as amended). Whilst there is mention of the circumstances
when it might be appropriate to take action to remedy untidy sites within the
adopted Plan, a review of cases since its adoption does indicate that
complainants do sometimes find it difficult to understand when and how we might
look to take such action.

1.5.2

Best Practice Guidance on a national level does exist (published by the ODPM,
January 2005) and initial research indicates the Local Planning Authorities across
the country rely on this to provide guidance to their local residents. Clearly,
matters have moved on somewhat since publication of this document particularly
since the production of the NPPF and associated PPG. Whilst the published
guidance does continue to provide some useful, high level advice on best
practice, it is considered that a Borough specific protocol which sets out plainly
how this Council will respond to complaints would be a beneficial tool to all parties
involved in the process.

1.5.3

As such, and in order to improve transparency concerning how these cases will be
dealt with it is considered that a further protocol to sit alongside the main Planning
Enforcement Plan and Direct Action Protocol would be appropriate. Officers have
therefore commenced work into the production of such a protocol and the final
draft will be reported in due course.

P&TAB-Part 1 Public

Page 60

13 November 2019

5

1.6

Legal Implications

1.6.1

Without an adopted protocol in place setting out when such action might be taken,
such decisions may be subject to legal challenge through the Courts. A formal
protocol also assists good governance and transparency in decision making.

1.7

Financial and Value for Money Considerations

1.7.1

The protocol will ensure that Council resources are properly focused on
appropriate cases which is important given the high volume of complaints
received.

1.8

Risk Assessment

1.8.1

The adoption of a clear protocol by which decisions will be made will reduce the
risk of any challenge as it clearly sets out the process and procedures the Council
will adhere to in seeking to take such action.

1.9

Equality Impact Assessment

1.9.1

The protocol as drafted will need to make clear that any decisions made will have
full regard to the Public Sector Equality Duty as set out at Section 149 of the
Equalities Act 2010.

1.10

Recommendations

1.10.1 That the contents of the report be NOTED.

Background papers:

contact: Emma Keefe

Nil

Eleanor Hoyle
Director of Planning, Housing & Environmental Health

P&TAB-Part 1 Public

Page 61

13 November 2019

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
TONBRIDGE & MALLING BOROUGH COUNCIL
PLANNING and TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY BOARD
13 November 2019
Report of the Director of Planning, Housing & Environmental Health
Part 1- Public
Matters for Information
1

LOCAL PLAN UPDATE
This report provides Members with an update on the Local Plan including
the public consultation exercise requested by the appointed Planning
Inspectors. There are no direct financial implications arising from this
information report.

1.1

Introduction

1.1.1

Since the last update to the Board in June, the Council has responded to the
Inspector’s letter of the 23rd May. The Inspectors have subsequently requested
that the Council undertakes a further round of public consultations on some of the
documents that have been published since the Local Plan was submitted to the
Secretary of State in January. The focus of the consultation is whether in the light
of the new documents the soundness of the Local Plan has changed.

1.1.2

The consultation was launched on the 4th November and will be open until 4pm on
the 16th December. Further information on the consultation arrangements are set
out below. They can also be found on the Council’s website.

1.1.3

The Council has also reached agreement with the Inspectors on how to display
respondent’s details in the redacted version of the Regulation 19 response
database. Members will recall that the Council was concerned that what was
being requested was not in accordance with the requirements of the General Data
Protection Regulation 2018 (GDPR). The database has been reloaded to reveal
name, ID number and partial postcode for individuals. The search function has
also been improved.

1.1.4

The Local Plan update also considers the next stages of the Examination process
and the implications for the Local Development Scheme or timetable.

1.1.5

This report also provides Members with an update in respect of Local Plan
progress in neighbouring Local Authorities as part of the ongoing Duty to
Cooperate.

P&TAB-Part 1 Public

Page 63

13 November 2019

2

1.2

Local Plan Update

1.2.1

The Inspectors confirmed that they wished the Council to consult on some of the
documents submitted to the examination since 23rd January before the Hearing
sessions could be arranged in their letter of 12th September. The Council has
since agreed with the Inspectors how this consultation should be carried out and
this was launched on 4th November for six weeks.

1.2.2

All respondents to the Regulation 19 consultation have been contacted as well as
statutory consultees, neighbouring local authorities, local councils and MPs. The
consultation has also been publicised on the Council’s website and social media
accounts and press releases issued.

1.2.3

The Council has purchased new consultation software (INOVEM) which will be
easier to use and collate the responses. Respondents will be encouraged to use
it where possible. There will be reasonable alternatives available for those who
cannot access the internet.

1.2.4

Previous respondents at Regulation 19 will be asked to use the same ID numbers
so that responses may be linked in future searches of the database. New
respondents will be issued new ID numbers.

1.2.5

After the consultation has closed on the 16th December the responses will be sent
to the Inspectors for their consideration in finalising the main issues and questions
(MIQs) that will form the basis of the discussion at the hearing sessions. How
long this part of the process will take will depend in part on the number and type of
responses received. However, it is anticipated that the MIQs will be issued early
in the new year and a date for the first three days of the hearing confirmed at the
same time.

1.2.6

As it is normal for there to be at least 6 weeks from the receipt of the MIQs and
the start of the hearing to allow for statements for those invited to appear to be
prepared, the hearing is not likely to commence before mid to late February and
this could extend into March.

1.2.7

The Inspectors will advise the Council when the remaining sessions will take place
after phase one of the Hearing early next year.

1.3

Update on Local Plan Progress in Neighbouring Authorities

1.3.1

Members may also be interested to know of Local Plan progress in neighbouring
authorities. It is important to demonstrate that cross boundary issues continue to
be the subject of ongoing discussions as part of the Duty to Cooperate. It is also
interesting to note how national planning policy is interpreted by different local
planning authorities and how Planning Inspectors respond.

P&TAB-Part 1 Public

Page 64

13 November 2019

3

1.3.2

1.3.3

Sevenoaks


The Sevenoaks Local Plan was submitted to the Secretary of State in April
this year and the first two weeks of a four week hearing began in
September.



The submitted Local Plan did not allocate sufficient sites to meet all of the
objectively assessed needs for housing over the plan period and some of
the sites that were included raised some questions over their deliverability.
The second two weeks of the programmed hearing were due to
recommence in November, but the Inspector wrote to the District Council in
October recommending that the plan be withdrawn due to significant
concerns over soundness and legal compliance issues.



Sevenoaks District Council has written back to the Inspector asking her to
reconsider. Her final decision was still awaited at the time of writing this
report and any further update will be provided verbally.

Tunbridge Wells


1.3.4

The draft Tunbridge Wells Local Plan has reached the Regulation 18
consultation stage. Members will recall the extraordinary meeting of the
Board on the 2nd October that considered a formal response to the draft
Tunbridge Wells Local Plan. The proposed response was amended to
reflect the concerns of Members raised at the meeting and further refined
following the Cabinet meeting on the 16th October. The response has now
been sent to Tunbridge Wells.

Maidstone


The Maidstone Local Plan was adopted in 2017, but with a
recommendation from the Local Plan Inspector that the plan be subject to
an early review.



Maidstone have recently undertaken a Local Plan Review – Scoping,
Themes & Issues Public Consultation under Regulation 18, although this
did not include detailed proposals or site allocations, which are expected to
be the subject of a further round of Regulation 18 consultations early in
2020.



An officer level response was returned in September identifying relevant
cross boundary issues including highway, air quality and local landscape
for ongoing Duty to Cooperate discussions and looking forward to further
engagement as evidence is updated and more detail emerges.

P&TAB-Part 1 Public

Page 65

13 November 2019

4

1.3.5

Gravesham


1.3.6

Medway


1.3.7

1.3.8

Gravesham shares a short boundary with Tonbridge and Malling and has a
separate Housing Market Area. The current Local Development Scheme
(last updated in October) indicates a second round of Regulation 18 public
consultations on a preferred option in January 2020.

Medway Council also shares a boundary with Tonbridge and Malling to the
north. The Council’s current Plan was adopted in 2003 and is now quite
dated. The Council’s Local Development Scheme indicates there will be a
Regulation 19 consultation on its Local Plan in December, but this may now
be delayed.

Kent County Council


The County Council is responsible for preparing the Kent Minerals and
Waste Local Plan 2013-2030 (adopted in 2016), which also forms part of
the Borough Council’s Development Plan. This Plan sets out a strategy for
the sustainable management of Kent’s minerals and waste.



KCC have recently carried out an early partial review of the Plan, which
included the Minerals sites Plan which identifies mineral sites and locations
for extraction, processing and importation. The Plans were submitted to the
Planning Inspectorate on the 3rd May 2019 and the examination hearing
sessions took place between the 8th and 15th October. KCC are now
waiting on the Inspector’s report and are anticipating commencing a
consultation on proposed modifications within the next few weeks.

The London Plan


Although Tonbridge and Malling does not share a boundary with Greater
London the influence of London on the wider south east is far reaching.
The Inspectors examining the London Plan have recently published their
report, which has recommended that the Mayor reconsiders his policy of
not reviewing the Green Belt within Greater London as this is contrary to
the NPPF.

1.4

Summary

1.4.1

This informative report sets out an update of the Local Plan progress since June.
The Inspectors have requested a targeted consultation on some of the documents
submitted by the Council to the examination since January and this is currently
open until the 16th December.

P&TAB-Part 1 Public

Page 66

13 November 2019

5

1.4.2

Once these responses have been collated and passed to the Inspectors we can
expect confirmation of the date of and arrangements for the phase one Hearing
expected to be early in the new year.

1.4.3

A summary of other Local Plan processes in neighbouring authorities and London
is provided for context.

1.5

Legal Implications

1.5.1

There are no legal implications arising directly from this information report.

1.6

Financial and Value for Money Considerations

1.6.1

There are no financial or value for money considerations arising directly from this
report.

1.7

Risk Assessment

1.7.1

Failing to have an up to date development plan puts the Local Planning Authority
at risk from unplanned or speculative developments.

Background papers:

contact: Ian Bailey
Planning Policy Manager

Nil
Eleanor Hoyle
Director of Planning, Housing & Environmental Health

P&TAB-Part 1 Public

Page 67

13 November 2019

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent due to special
circumstances and of which notice has been given to the Chief Executive.

Page 69

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10
The Chairman to move that the press and public be excluded from the remainder
of the meeting during consideration of any items the publication of which would
disclose exempt information.

ANY REPORTS APPEARING AFTER THIS PAGE CONTAIN EXEMPT
INFORMATION

Page 71

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11
Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent due to special
circumstances and of which notice has been given to the Chief Executive.

Page 73

This page is intentionally left blank

